Minutes of the Livingston Parish Council Livingston, Louisiana October 28, 2021

The Livingston Parish Council met in a regular session duly called, advertised, and convened via Zoom on Thursday, October 28, 2021, at the hour of six o'clock (6:00) p.m. with the following Livingston Parish Council members present:

Jeff Ard Maurice "Scooter" Keen John Wascom R.C. "Bubba" Harris Gerald McMorris Tracy Girlinghouse Randy Delatte Shane Mack

Garry Talbert

Absent: Parish President Layton Ricks

Parish Legal Counsel

The chair called the meeting to order.

----- the chair cancer the meeting to order.

The chair asked the public to please mute or turn off their cell phones.

The chair announced that Public Input would be accepted from any member of the audience wishing to address an agenda item and explained the procedure to be called upon.

The chair addressed agenda item number 7, "Presentations", and advised that there none at that time and moved to the next agenda item.

The chair addressed agenda item number 8, "<u>Introduction of ordinance</u>: Redistricting Determination setting forth the 2020 Census counts in each Parish Council Election District – Garry Talbert/Cedric Floyd, President of Data Center, LLC".

The chair called upon the Council clerk to read the proposed ordinance by title and set the Public Hearing date for Thursday, November 18, 2021.

Thereupon, the Council clerk read the ordinance by title and set the Public Hearing for Thursday, November 18, 2021 at six o'clock (6:00) p.m. at the Parish Council Chambers in the Governmental Building located at 20355 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana, at which time comments will be received on the proposed ordinance prior to a Council vote and will publish the ordinance by title in the Official Journal in accordance with the legal mandates of the Home Rule Charter.

L.P. ORDINANCE NO. 21-27

AN ORDINANCE SETTING FORTH THE 2020 CENSUS COUNTS IN EACH PARISH COUNCIL ELECTION DISTRICT AND DETERMINING WHETHER REDISTRICING IS REQUIRED.

The chair acknowledged the presence of the Parish's demographer, Mr. Cedric Floyd, President of Data Center, LLC, and explained that the Council will debate and then vote on November 18, 2021 and the Council will look forward to hearing from him at that time.

There being no other comments or discussion, the chair moved to address the next item on the agenda.

The chair addressed agenda item number 10a, "Parish President's Report: Executive Session: Opioid Litigation – Local Governments, Big Three Distributors and J & J Settlement Proposal: Authorize the Parish President to sign Memorandum of Understanding – Blayne Honeycutt".

The chair explained the process of going into executive session via Zoom. He stated that everyone had been sent the proposed resolution and Memorandum of Understanding for their review, and if everyone was comfortable, there would be no need to go into executive session. Councilman Randy Delatte stated that he wished to make the motion to adopt the resolution without going into executive session. Having no objection, the chair called for the vote.

STATE OF LOUISIANA PARISH OF LIVINGSTON

L.P. RESOLUTION NO. 21-317

MOTION was made by Randy Delatte and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to adopt the following resolution:

A Resolution authorizing the Parish of Livingston (herein referred to as this "Governmental Unit") to join with the State of Louisiana and other local governmental units as a participant in the LOUISIANA STATE-LOCAL GOVERNMENT OPIOID LITIGATION MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (the "MOU") and any subsequent Formal Agreements necessary to implement the MOU, including but not limited to, the Subdivision Settlement Participation Form(s) in Exhibit K of the Distributor Settlement Agreement and the Janssen Settlement Agreement¹.

WHEREAS, the Parish of Livingston has suffered harm from the opioid epidemic;

WHEREAS, the Parish of Livingston recognizes that the entire State of Louisiana has suffered harm as a result from the opioid epidemic;

WHEREAS, the State of Louisiana has a pending action in state court, and a number of Louisiana Cities and Parishes have also filed an action *In re: National Prescription Opiate Litigation*, MDL No. 2804 (N.D. Ohio) (the "Opioid Litigation") and Parish of Livingston is a litigating participant in that action:

WHEREAS, the State of Louisiana and lawyers representing certain various local governments involved in the Opioid Litigation have proposed a unified plan for the allocation and use of prospective settlement dollars from opioid related litigation;

WHEREAS, the Louisiana Memorandum of Understanding (the "MOU") sets forth sets forth a framework of a unified plan for the proposed allocation and use of opioid settlement proceeds and it is anticipated that formal agreements implementing the MOU will be entered into at a future date; and,

WHEREAS, participation in the MOU by a large majority of Louisiana cities and parishes will materially increase the amount of funds to Louisiana and should improve Louisiana's relative bargaining position during additional settlement negotiations;

WHEREAS, failure to participate in the MOU will reduce funds available to the State, Parish of Livingston, and every other Louisiana city and Parish;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS GOVERNMENTAL UNIT:

SECTION 1. That this Governmental Unit finds that participation in the MOU would be in the best interest of the Governmental Unit and its citizens in that such a plan ensures that almost all of the settlement funds go to abate and resolve the opioid epidemic and each and every city and Parish receives funds for the harm that it has suffered.

SECTION 2. That this Governmental Unit hereby expresses its support of a unified plan for the allocation and use of opioid settlement proceeds as generally described in the MOU, attached hereto as Exhibit "A."

SECTION 3. That D. Blayne Honeycutt is hereby expressly authorized to execute the MOU in substantially the form contained in Exhibit "A."

SECTION 4. That Layton Ricks, is hereby authorized to execute the any formal agreements implementing a unified plan for the allocation and use of opioid settlement proceeds that is not substantially inconsistent with the MOU and this Resolution including but not limited to the Subdivision Settlement Participation Form(s) in the *Distributor Settlement Agreement* and the *Janssen Settlement Agreement*².

SECTION 5. That the Clerk be and hereby is instructed to record this Resolution in the appropriate record book upon its adoption.

SECTION 6. The clerk of this Governmental Unit is hereby directed to furnish a certified copy of this Ordinance/Resolution to the Louisiana Attorney General at:

Attorney General Jeff Landry c/o Bill Stiles Post Office Box 94005 Baton Rouge, LA 70804

SECTION 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. MCMORRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. DELATTE, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 10b, "Off System Bridge Program: Adopt annual certification of compliance with the State of Louisiana Off-System Bridge Replacement Program".

STATE OF LOUISIANA PARISH OF LIVINGSTON

LPR NO. 21-328

MOTION was offered by Randy Delatte and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to rescind LPR No. 21-318 adopted at the October 28, 2021 regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council and adopt the annual certification of compliance with State of Louisiana Off-System Bridge Replacement Program for the period October 1, 2021, through September 30, 2022, and establish the load limits on bridges within the Off-System Bridge Program and post said limits.

WHEREAS, the code of Federal Regulations as enacted by the United States Congress mandates that all structures defined as bridges located on all public roads shall be inspected, rated for safe load capacity and posted in accordance with the National Bridge Inspection Standards and that an inventory of these bridges be maintained by each State; and

WHEREAS, the responsibility to inspect, rate and load post those bridges under the authority of Livingston Parish in accordance with those Standards is delegated by the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development to Livingston Parish.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the governing authority of Livingston Parish (herein referred to as the Parish) that the Parish in regular meeting assembled does hereby certify to the Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development (herein referred to as the DOTD) that for the period 1 October 2021 through 30 September 2022:

- 1. The Parish will perform all interim inspections on all Parish owned or maintained bridges in accordance with the National Bridge Inspection Standards. All bridges owned or maintained by the Parish will be structurally analyzed and rated by the Parish as to the safe load capacity in accordance with AASHTO Manual for Maintenance Inspection of Bridges. The load posting information that has been determined above will be critically reviewed by the Parish. Load posting information will be updated by the Parish to reflect all structural changes, any obsolete structural ratings or any missing structural ratings.
- 2. All Parish owned or maintained bridges which require load posting or closing shall be load posted or closed in accordance with the table in the DOTD Engineering Directives and Standards Manual Directive No. 1.1.1.8. All DOTD supplied load posting information concerning a bridge shall be critically reviewed by an engineer hired by the Parish prior to load posting.
- 3. All bridges owned or maintained by the Parish are shown on the attached list in the format specified by the DOTD. Corrections to data supplied to the Parish by the LA DOTD are noted.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD,

MR. TALBERT, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

CERTIFICATE

I, Sandy C. Teal, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed Council Clerk of the Livingston Parish Council, State of Louisiana. I hereby further certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Motion adopted by the Livingston Parish Council at a regular meeting held on October 28, 2021 in which meeting a quorum was present.

WITNESS my official signature and seal of office at Livingston, Louisiana, this the 2^{ND} day of November 2021.

\s\ Sandy C. Teal

PARISH OF LIVINGSTON

STATE OF LOUISIANA

LPR NO. 21-318

MOTION was offered by Randy Delatte and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to adopt the annual certification of compliance with State of Louisiana Off-System Bridge Replacement Program for the period October 1,2021, through September 30, 2022 and establish the load limits on bridges within the Off-System Bridge Program and post said limits as marked in Exhibit A.

Exhibit A

RECALL#	BRIDGE NAME:	WEIGHT:	POSTED AS:
101001	SOUTH SATSUMA ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101002	SOUTH SATSUMA ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101006	FORREST DELATTE ROAD	15-25	15-25
101007	FORREST DELATTE ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101009	WAX ROAD	NO LIMIT	OPEN NO POSTING
101013	JOE MAY ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101017	PERKINS ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101018	DUFF ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101019	BURGESS ROAD	25-40	20-35
101020	HOOD ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101021	HOOD ROAD	15-25	10-15
101022	HAMMACK ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101023	MILTON ROAD	15-25	10-15
101025	GAYLORD ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101028	BLACKMUD ROAD	15-25	15-25
101032	COURTNEY ROAD	NO LIMIT	10-15
101034	VARNADO ROAD	NO LIMIT	20-30
101035	STAFFORD ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101036	LOD STAFFORD ROAD	CLOSED	10-15
101038	WES ARLEDGE ROAD	25-40	25-40
101039	TEXAS STREET	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101040	SOUTH RANGE ROAD	20-35	10-15
101042	NORTH SATSUMA ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101043	NORTH DOYLE ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING

101044	GENE HUGHES ROAD	25-40	10-15
101045	CHARLES HOLDEN ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101047	JACK RHODUS ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101048	FRANK BALLARD ROAD	10-15	10-15
101049	PERRILLOUX ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101052	HOOD ROAD	25-40	10-15
101053	PALMER ROAD	10-15	10-15
101054	PALMER ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
10155	MILLER ROAD	10-15	10-15
101060	OLD RIVER ROAD	10-15	10-15
101061	CHINQUAPIN STREET	NO LIMIT	10-15
101065	OLD RIVER ROAD	25-40	25-40
101066	RICHARDSON ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101071	GEORGE WHITE ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101072	PARDUE ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101076	JAMES CHAPEL ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101078	HENRY WHITE ROAD	25-40	10-15
101079	PEA RIDGE ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101080	OLD CC ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101081	WAGNER ROAD	NO LIMIT	10-15
101082	PEA RIDGE ROAD	10-15	10-15
101083	MARY KINCHEN ROAD	25-35	10-15
101086	W. HUBERT STILLEY ROAD	25-40	25-40
101088	ELBERT STEWART ROAD	NO LIMIT	25-40
101089	HORSESHOE NORTH ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101090	NORTH HORSESHOE ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101093	GEORGE MASHON	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101094	SCIVICQUE ROAD	20-35	20-35
620002	WEST BATES ROAD	25-40	10-15
620011	CLEARWATER DRIVE	25-40	15-25
620012	GENE BUCKEL ROAD	25-40	15-25
620017	KINGS DRIVE	15-25	10-15
620018	WHITTINGTON ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
620019	JOHN L LANE	20-35	10-15
620024	WHIT HOLDEN ROAD	NO LIMIT	10-15
620036	BUDDY ELLIS	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING

620038	JOHN BARBER ROAD	10-15	10-15
620039	CLINE ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
620041	CROSSOVER ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
620051	SHADOW SPRINGS BOULEVARD	15-25	15-25
620077	RICHARDSON ROAD	NO LIMIT M	NO POSTING
620144	A.J. WILLIAMS ROAD	25-40	10-15
620145	ROBBIE LEE ROAD	25-40	10-15
620146	OAK HILLS SUBDIVISON	NO LIMIT	15
620147	BLACK LAKE CLUB ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
620190	WILDWOOD DRIVE	15-25	15-25
620191	JR MCLIN ROAD	25-40	20-35
620193	ACADIANA PLACE SUBDIVISON	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
620237	BUDDY ELLIS ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
620264	BANKSTON ROAD SOUTH	25-40	10-15
620016	CARROL AVENUE	20-35	10-15
101024	LINDER ROAD	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
101069	MCCARROL ROAD	NO LIMIT	10-15
620014	TRAVIS STREET	NO LIMIT	NO POSTING
620291	OAK RIDGE DRIVE	NO LIMIT	20-35
620303	WILLIE WALKER ROAD	10-15	10-15
620305	GINNY LANE	10-15	10-15

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT, YEAS:

MR. HARRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: **NONE**

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: **NONE**

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

CERTIFICATE

I, Sandy C. Teal, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed Council Clerk of the Livingston Parish Council, State of Louisiana. I hereby further certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Motion adopted by the Livingston Parish Council at a regular meeting held on October 28, 2021 in which meeting a quorum was present.

WITNESS my official signature and seal of office at Livingston, Louisiana, this the 2nd day of November 2021.

\s\ Sandy C. Teal

Sandy C. Teal, Council Clerk Livingston Parish Council

The chair addressed agenda item(s) 11a and b, "Florida Parishes Human Services Authority Appointment:

- a. Resignation of Cheryl Smithb. Appointment of Charlene Lilly (recommendation of FPHSA and resident of Council District 7)"

LPR NO. 21-319

MOTION was made by Tracy Girlinghouse and duly seconded by Randy Delatte to accept the resignation of Cheryl Smith from the Florida Parishes Human Services Authority and appoint Charlene Lilly (resident of Council District 7) to fill this vacancy that expires upon December 31, 2021; and whereupon at the expiration of this term will be eligible for reappointment to remain on the board, if elected, and serve a new three (3) year term that will expire on December 31, 2024.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT,

MR. HARRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 12, "Update on Hurricane Ida debris pickup – Randy Delatte".

The chair called upon Ms. Brandi Janes, Director of the Livingston Parish Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness.

Ms. Janes gave a report on the amount of debris that had been picked up in the Parish and the number of trucks that were out and about in the Parish-concentrating the majority of those trucks in Council Districts 8 and 9, being the hardest hit in the eastern and southeastern parts of the Parish. She reported on the water debris, and advised that FEMA had elected not to cover the Parish's water debris and the Parish would be turning everything over to NRCS, hoping to have a packet ready to send by the end of the following week. Funding would be to come from a congressional vote to have that money allocated to NRCS. Debris operations would cease on November 19th and begin again on December 6th, which will be the last pass and notify the public of this in varying ways.

Councilman Randy Delatte questioned Ms. Janes and wished to know what the plan was for of the pickup and described the many problems that are reported to him on a daily basis.

The chair interjected to comment on funding from the Recovery Act for government services, which can be a broad range of things. He suggested that if the NRCS chooses not to fund a certain area, there may be funds in the General Budget that could be allocated for that.

Councilman Delatte asked for a phone number that the general public could call with debris questions. Ms. Janes explained that she was working with the Parish's phone company to institute a phone bank in the Parish's EOC center. She described the calls that her office receives on a daily basis and explained that they take the caller's information, advising that her office is not handling the debris pickup, and email their information to Mark Harrell who is the lead of the debris pickup for the Parish.

Councilman Gerald McMorris wished to ask who set up the contract to do this work in the Parish?

Ms. Janes explained the procurement process. Councilman McMorris advised that he wanted a list of roads that were scheduled for debris pickup from the company who was handling the debris work in his Council district. He explained different areas in his district that still were not able to be driven upon because of the debris.

The chair allowed an open discussion about the contract and the many areas throughout the Parish that were still in need of help with debris pickup.

The chair asked if anyone had any further discussion? Having none, he moved to the next agenda item and thanked Ms. Janes for her participation.

The chair addressed agenda item number 13, "Adopt resolution to authorize a variance of Section 125-12(6), "Requirements for Minor Subdivisions", to waive the forty foot (40') servitude requirement and allow a twenty-five foot (25') servitude as there are existing structures within the

forty foot (40') servitude mandate for David and Beth Wolfe located in Council District 9", and called upon Councilman Shane Mack.

Councilman Mack advised that the property in question was family property and they wished to subdivide in order to give to their children. They are asking for a waiver for the width of the servitude. The servitude requirement is forty feet (40') and they are requesting twenty-five feet as the servitude is going to follow an existing road that goes back to the property and between the property line and the edge of the servitude, there are some existing structures and there is not enough room to get through that way, therefore they are requesting this waiver on a twenty-five (25') foot servitude. Councilman Mack stated that he wished to make the motion to grant the waiver and advised that he had assessed and inspected the site. Councilman Randy Delatte stated that he wished to make the second to that motion.

The chair asked Councilman Mack if the property owners were aware that the twenty-five (25') foot servitude might not let them obtain a mo-dad installed and asked if they had spoken with the health unit to make sure that the servitude is significant enough to allow them to install sewer. The chair was concerned that if the Council granted the waiver and then they would not be allowed to place the sewer plant in the back. Councilman Mack replied to the chair that he posed a very good question, and what will happened if that's the case and they are not able to build a new structure due the sewer servitude, they can go back after that and add a specific dedicated super servitude that takes the sewer exactly where the Department of Health and Hospitals group would like for it to go, so that would be of no concern.

LPR NO. 21-320

MOTION was made by Shane Mack and duly seconded by Randy Delatte to authorize a variance of Section 125-12(6), "Requirements for Minor Subdivisions", to waive the forty foot (40') servitude requirement and allow a twenty-five foot (25') servitude as there are existing structures within the forty foot (40') servitude mandate for David and Beth Wolfe located off of Wolfe Lane (to Louisiana Highway 190) in Council District 9.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT,

MR. HARRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 14, "Discussion and review of neighboring citizens' complaints and concerns regarding the infrastructure and the drainage of a proposed minor resubdivision for Jonelle Thompson located on Henry White Road, being 10.650 acres, six (6) lots being divided, Section 17, T6S-R6E in Council District 9" and called upon Councilman Shane Mack.

Councilman Mack thanked the Council for the opportunity to place this item and the agenda and wished to state that the property owner was not asking for any waivers for this division of property. He explained that the reason that he placed this on the agenda was because many of the surrounding property owners are concerned about this development, reason being that the drainage is very poor in the area and the existing parish road that the development borders up to is very narrow. They also had concerns about the placement of sewer, the traffic and the drainage.

Councilman Mack explained the acreage of the property that is currently divided into three (3) lots, which will be between three (3) and four (4) acres each. The property owner wished to subdivide these lots in half making the new lots approximately 1.75 acre lots, which will add three (3) additional homes.

Councilman Mack further explained that he had communicated with the engineer/surveyor that is over the development and advised of the concern about the drainage. The engineer advised that they had calculated the impervious that would be placed on this property. After these calculations, it was the opinion of the engineering firm that this will minimally impact the surrounding drainage. Councilman Mack stated his concerns being that there was not a funded gravity drainage district and there was very, very, very minimal maintenance being performed on the existing drainage. He

discussed how a funded gravity drainage district could impact this area and drainage would be acceptable and all parties could be happy with the development.

Councilman Mack stated that he would like to open the floor, with the approval of the Council chairman, and let those that were in attendance voice their concerns. He also questioned if the Council members who have dealt with developments similar to this, might have some inspiring direction on how to move forward with this.

The chair called for Public input.

Public input: Drew Calderone, resident of Henry White Road on the southside of the proposed development

Brett Johnson, resident of Henry White Road Sherri Resatar, resident of Henry White Road

The chair questioned Councilman Mack about Henry White Road. Councilman Mack explained at great length giving details about Henry White Road.

Public input: Tammy Resatar, resident

The chair allowed an open discussion.

Public input: Sherri Resatar

The chair allowed the open discussion to continue.

Public input: Eddie Aydell, engineer of Alvin Fairburn, answered questions from the chair

The open discussion continued.

Public input: Drew Calderone

Councilman Delatte suggested to Councilman Mack to set up a meeting with all of the parties involved.

Councilman Mack advised that he wished to schedule a meeting with Planning, the surrounding neighbors and the property owner.

After more open discussion, and further comment, it was determined that no action should be taken on this item.

The chair addressed agenda item number 15, "Adopt resolution to correct and establish that "Denham Road" should be listed in all parish records as "Denham Drive" being a parish maintained road located in Council District 4" and called upon Councilman John Wascom.

Councilman Wascom explained that he had been contacted by the residents who live on Denham Drive. They reported that a new street sign had been replaced after the original signage had been reported missing. The Livingston Parish Department of Public Works installed the new street sign as "Denham Road" according to the "Grant Bankston Road List". The residents all testified that it has always been known as Denham Drive and had supporting evidence of their claim. He requested for the Council to adopt a resolution that would correctly identify the road as Denham Drive.

The chair questioned why the policy on changing a road name was not being followed.

The Council clerk requested to speak and to advise of the research that had been executed to determine the correct road name. There has been several times in the past that the Council have had to correct wording on the "Grant Bankston Road list" and upon favorable investigation, it was determined that the correct road name is Denham Drive and not Denham Road.

Councilman Randy Delatte stated that he agreed with everyone else, and he did not think that this was changing the road name, they were looking to put the correct sign up.

LPR NO. 21-321

MOTION was made by John Wascom and duly seconded by Randy Delatte to Adopt resolution to correct and establish that "Denham Road" should be listed in all parish records as "Denham Drive" being a parish maintained road located in Council District 4.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT,

MR. HARRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

Public input: Barry Innerarity, resident of Denham Drive

The chair addressed agenda item number 16, "Accept Tyler Lane into the Parish maintenance system under Type D Roads located in Council District 9" and called upon Councilman Shane Mack.

Councilman Mack stated that he wished to defer this item indefinitely until he received an acceptable petition with all of the required signatures. He would bring this item back to the Council at that time.

The chair addressed agenda item 17, "Adopt resolution to add the following roads for consideration to the Priority Road/Capital Outlay List:

- a. Dick Hodges Road and Olah Road located in Council District 9 Shane Mack
- b. Fern Street and Railroad Street located in Council District 4 John Wascom"

STATE OF LOUISIANA PARISH OF LIVINGSTON

LPR NO. 21-322

MOTION was made by Shane Mack and duly seconded by John Wascom to add the following road for consideration to the Capital Outlay/Priority Road List:

- Dick Hodges Road located in Council District No. 9 Shane Mack
- Olah Road located in Council District No. 9 Shane Mack
- Fern Street located in Council District No. 4 John Wascom
- Railroad Street located in Council District No. 4 John Wascom

2021 LIVINGSTON PARISH ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ROAD ANALYSIS AND ASSESSMENT – 3 YEAR PRIORITY LIST

ROAD NAME	<u>Council</u> District	<u>Priority</u> Rank	Priority Score	<u>LP Resolution</u> Number	Date Adopted
McLin Road	1	<u>Kank</u> 1	44	LPR NO. 17-091	March 9, 2017
Clinton Allen Road	2	2	38.1	LPR NO. 18-245	August 9, 2018
Meadow Lane	2	3	30.3	LPR NO. 20-097	March 12, 2020
Hunter Brooke Lane (gravel)	2	4	19.3	LPR NO. 19-258	August 8, 2019
Bush Lane (gravel)	2	5	9	LPR NO. 16-044	January 28, 2016
Perkins Road South	3	6	45.3	LPR NO. 15-095	March 17, 2015
Dunmark Road (gravel)	3	7	3.3	LPR NO. 19-329	October 10, 2019
Desert Willow Avenue	4	8	36.5	LPR NO. 17-016	January 12, 2017
Burlingame Street	4	9	34.2	LPR NO. 20-097	March 12, 2020
Sharon Street	4	10	20	LPR NO. 18-158	May 10, 2018
Myrtle Street	4	11	18.1	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
* Removed from list				LPR NO. 21-172	May 27, 2021
to add three below	4			LPR NO. 21-172	May 27, 2021
Linwood Street	4			LPR NO. 21-172	May 27, 2021
*added	4			LPR NO. 21-172	May 27, 2021
Railroad Avenue added					
Third Street *added					
North College Drive	4	12	33.9	LPR NO. 21-013	January 14, 2021
Cedar Street	4	13	28.9	LPR NO. 21-013	January 14, 2021
Stubb Street	4	14	12.2	LPR NO. 21-013	January 14, 2021
Rosemont Avenue	5	15	41.8	LPR NO. 18-362	December 6, 2018

XX71-14-1-11 A	_	1.0	20.0	I DD MO 10 276	N
Whitehall Avenue	5	16	39.8	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Genre Drive	5	17	36.6		
Debbie Lane	5	18	34.7	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Canyon Road	5	19	33.5	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Pleasant Knoll Drive	6	20	46.4	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Willow Wood Drive	6	21	37.8	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Canterbury Avenue	6	22	36.8	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Pinecrest Drive	6	23	35.6	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Ball Park Road	7	24	40.6	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Travis Street	7	25	33.5	LPR NO. 20-097	March 12, 2020
Vera McGowen	7	26	45	LPR NO. 21-013	January 14, 2021
Lost Oak Lane	8	27	46.4	LPR NO. 20-236	July 23, 2020
King George Bay Road	8	28	37	LPR NO. 19-258	August 8, 2019
*Reduce footage				LPR NO. 21-173	May 27, 2021
to add 2 below	8			LPR NO. 21-173	May 27, 2021
JW Lane	8			LPR NO. 21-173	May 27, 2021
Palmer Road					
(remaining portion)					
George White Road	9	29	45	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
(west section)					
1st Street	9	30	35.5	LPR NO. 21-013	January 14, 2021

ROADS THAT ARE NOMINATED FOR	Council	Priority	Resolution	Date of
CONSIDERATION TO AMEND THE	District	Rank	Number	Adoption
PRIORITY LIST				
Henry Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 15-086	March 12, 2015
(North Section)				
Henry Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 15-086	March 12, 2015
(South Section)				
Lynn Street	7	tbs	LPR NO. 15-095	March 17, 2015
North Achord Road	1	tbs	LPR NO. 15-167	June 11, 2015
Karli Lane	9	tbs	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
(Phase 2– Off of Ross Trail/Wagner Road)				
South Satsuma Road	6	tbs	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
(Phase 3)				
Timberwood Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Peak Lane	7	tbs	LPR NO. 15-215	August 23, 2015
Live Oak Village Road	2	tbs	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Greystone Drive	5	tbs	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Charles Holden Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
John Barber Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Nature's Way	1	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Old CC Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
(formerly known as Slaughter Pen Road)				
Pete Smith Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Sidney Woods Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Leader Road	8	45	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Crain Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Gum Swamp Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
(South Section)				
Olah Lane	9	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Pine Bluff Road	4	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017

Wagner Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
(East section)	9	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Wagner Road (West section)	9	tos	LFK NO. 17-032	January 26, 2017
Kingfisher Street	2	tbs	LPR NO. 17-055	February 9, 2017
Sims Road	2	tbs	LPR NO. 17-266	August 10, 2017
Spring Lake Drive (North Section)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 17-396	December14, 2017
Woodland Street	5	tbs	LPR NO. 17-396	December14, 2017
(South Section) Cedar Street	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-041	February 8, 2018
Brookfield Drive	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-158	May 10, 2018
New Port Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Balmoral Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Timberlake Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Shady Hollow Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Timber Ridge Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Alder Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Cedar Street	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-041	February 8, 2018
Stonehenge Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Abbey Lane (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Coronation Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Buckingham Avenue (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Windsor Avenue (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Hampton Court (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Wimbledon Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Big Ben Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Parliament Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Parkwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Greenwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Havenwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Hollyridge Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Glenbrooke Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Mulberry Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Hazelwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Burlwood Avenue (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Poplar Glen Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Robindale Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Millstone Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Cottonwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Avondale Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Silverwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Maplewood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Sprucewood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Pinebrook Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Mimosa Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018

Palmwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	Bell Wood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Ribbonwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	\				-
Buffwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)		6	tbs		-
Sugewood Drive (Woodland Crossing)		6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	
Wynnewood Avenue (Woodland Crossing) 6 tbs LPR NO. 18-216 July 12, 2018 Myrle Wood Court (Woodland Crossing) 6 tbs LPR NO. 18-216 July 12, 2018 Bronzewood Avenue (Woodland Crossing) 6 tbs LPR NO. 18-216 July 12, 2018 Birchwood Court (Woodland Crossing) 6 tbs LPR NO. 18-216 July 12, 2018 Jimmy Drive (Woodland Crossing) 6 tbs LPR NO. 18-216 July 12, 2018 Jimmy Drive (Woodland Crossing) 6 tbs LPR NO. 18-216 July 12, 2018 Jimmy Drive (Woodland Crossing) 6 tbs LPR NO. 18-216 July 12, 2018 Jimmy Drive (Woodland Crossing) 6 tbs LPR NO. 18-345 November 8, 2018 Route Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 tbs LPR NO. 18-345 November 8, 2018 Garnet Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 tbs LPR NO. 18-345 November 8, 2018 Sapphire Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 tbs LPR NO. 18-345 November 8, 2018 Richardson Lane 8 tbs LPR N	`	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	-
Myrtle Wood Court (Woodland Crossing)	<u> </u>	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	-
Bronzewood Avenue (Woodland Crossing)		6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	-
Birchwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	<u> </u>	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	-
Mirkwood Court (Woodland Crossing)		6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	,
Jimmy Drive (Woodland Crossing)	Mirkwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Ruby Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 ths LPR NO. 18-345 November 8, 2018	Jimmy Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	-
Ruby Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 tbs LPR NO. 18-345 November 8, 2018	Fountain View Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Diamond Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 ths LPR NO. 18-345 November 8, 2018		1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Garnet Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 ths LPR NO. 18-345 November 8. 2018 Lake Terrace Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 ths LPR NO. 18-345 November 8. 2018 Sapphire Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 ths LPR NO. 18-345 November 8. 2018 Phillip Richardson Road 8 ths LPR NO. 18-345 November 8. 2018 Richardson Lane 8 ths LPR NO. 18-380 December 20, 2018 Parkway Drive (South Haven Subdivision) 6 ths LPR NO. 19-041 January 24, 2019 Cheryl Drive (between Arlene Drive and Cheray Drive) 2 ths LPR NO. 19-136 April 25, 2019 Melrose Avenue (Richmond Place Subdivision) 2 ths LPR NO. 19-136 April 25, 2019 Cooper Street 6 ths LPR NO. 19-136 April 25, 2019 Grand Lake Boulevard (Lakeside Estates) 6 ths LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Borgne (Lakeside Estates) 6 ths LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Sabine Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 ths	, 1	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Sapphire Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 ths LPR NO. 18-345 November 8, 2018 Phillip Richardson Road 8 ths LPR NO. 18-380 December 20, 2018 Richardson Lane 8 ths LPR NO. 18-380 December 20, 2018 Parkway Drive (South Haven Subdivision) 6 ths LPR NO. 19-041 January 24, 2019 Cheryl Drive (between Arlene Drive and Cheray Drive) 1 ths LPR NO. 19-136 April 25, 2019 Melrose Avenue (Richmond Place Subdivision) 2 ths LPR NO. 19-136 April 25, 2019 Cooper Street 6 ths LPR NO. 19-136 April 25, 2019 Grand Lake Boulevard (Lakeside Estates) 6 ths LPR NO. 19-173 May 23, 2019 Lake Borgne (Lakeside Estates) 6 ths LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Sabine Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 ths LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 ths LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 ths	\ 1 \ 0	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Sapphire Drive (Spring Lake subdivision) 1 tbs LPR NO. 18-345 November 8, 2018 Phillip Richardson Road 8 tbs LPR NO. 18-380 December 20, 2018 Richardson Lane 8 tbs LPR NO. 18-380 December 20, 2018 Parkway Drive (South Haven Subdivision) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-041 January 24, 2019 Cheryl Drive (between Arlene Drive and Cheray Drive) tbs LPR NO. 19-136 April 25, 2019 Melrose Avenue (Richmond Place Subdivision) 2 tbs LPR NO. 19-136 April 25, 2019 Cooper Street 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-136 April 25, 2019 Grand Lake Boulevard (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Borgne (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Sabine Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 </td <td>Lake Terrace Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)</td> <td>1</td> <td>tbs</td> <td>LPR NO. 18-345</td> <td>November 8, 2018</td>	Lake Terrace Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Richardson Lane		1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Richardson Lane	Phillip Richardson Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Cheryl Drive (between Arlene Drive and Cheray Drive)		8	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Drive Melrose Avenue (Richmond Place Subdivision) 2	Parkway Drive (South Haven Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Cooper Street 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-173 May 23, 2019 Grand Lake Boulevard (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Borgne (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Sabine Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Lery Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Black Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Cross Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Homer Harris Road 5 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 *Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019 *Cross Park No. 19-329 Octob	<u> </u>	2	tbs	LPR NO. 19-136	April 25, 2019
Grand Lake Boulevard (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Borgne (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Sabine Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Lery Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Cross Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Homer Harris Road 5 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 *Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019 *Crober 10, 201	Melrose Avenue (Richmond Place Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 19-136	April 25, 2019
Lake Borgne (Lakeside Estates) Lake Sabine Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Lery Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Lery Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) Lake Salvador Drive (Lake	Cooper Street	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-173	May 23, 2019
Lake Sabine Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Lery Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Black Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Cross Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Homer Harris Road 5 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 *Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019 *LPR NO. 19-378 August 22, 2019 *Mack Road 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-329 October 10, 2019 Mecca Road Extension 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-336 November 21, 2019	Grand Lake Boulevard (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Lake Lery Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) LPR NO. 19-278 Lugust 22, 2019 Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) LPR NO. 19-278 Lugust 22, 2019 White Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) LPR NO. 19-278 Lugust 22, 2019 Lugust 22, 2	Lake Borgne (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) Black Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) Black Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) Cross Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Homer Harris Road Coma Harris Road Coma Harris Road Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019 Mack Road LOB Stafford Road LPR NO. 19-329 Cotober 10, 2019 Mecca Road Extension LPR NO. 19-338 Cotober 24, 2019 Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019 November 21, 2019	Lake Sabine Drive (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Black Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Cross Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Homer Harris Road 7 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 7 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 8 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 9 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 9 tbs LPR NO. 19-379 October 24, 2019 Mack Road 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-329 October 10, 2019 Mecca Road Extension 9 tbs LPR NO. 19-338 October 24, 2019 Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019 Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019	Lake Lery Drive (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Black Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Cross Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Homer Harris Road 5 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 White Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 **October 24, 2019 **October 24, 2019 Mack Road 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-329 October 10, 2019 Mecca Road Extension 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-338 October 24, 2019 Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019	Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
White Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Cross Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Homer Harris Road Oma Harris Road **Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019 *Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019 Lod Stafford Road 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-329 October 10, 2019 Mack Road 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-329 October 10, 2019 Mecca Road Extension 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-338 October 24, 2019 Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019	Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Cross Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Homer Harris Road Oma Harris Road **LPR NO. 19-278 **No. 19-335 (*Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019) Lod Stafford Road 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-329 October 10, 2019 Mack Road 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-329 October 10, 2019 Mecca Road Extension 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-338 October 24, 2019 Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019 Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019	Black Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-278 August 22, 2019 Homer Harris Road Oma Harris Road *LPR NO. 19-278 *LPR NO. 19-278 *UPR NO. 19-278 *Coctober 24, 2019 *Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019 Lod Stafford Road 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-329 Mack Road 1 tbs LPR NO. 19-329 Mecca Road Extension 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-338 October 10, 2019 Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) LOD Stafford Road LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019 November 21, 2019	White Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Homer Harris Road Oma Harris Road *Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019 Lod Stafford Road Lo	Cross Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Oma Harris Road *Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019*LPR NO. 19- 335 (*Minute correction of road name)*October 24, 2019Lod Stafford Road1tbsLPR NO. 19-329October 10, 2019Mack Road1tbsLPR NO. 19-329October 10, 2019Mecca Road Extension6tbsLPR NO. 19-338October 24, 2019Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)6tbsLPR NO. 19-376November 21, 2019Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)6tbsLPR NO. 19-376November 21, 2019	Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Lod Stafford Road1tbsLPR NO. 19-329October 10, 2019Mack Road1tbsLPR NO. 19-329October 10, 2019Mecca Road Extension6tbsLPR NO. 19-338October 24, 2019Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)6tbsLPR NO. 19-376November 21, 2019Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)6tbsLPR NO. 19-376November 21, 2019	Oma Harris Road	5	tbs	*LPR NO. 19- 335 (*Minute correction of	
Mecca Road Extension6tbsLPR NO. 19-338October 24, 2019Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)6tbsLPR NO. 19-376November 21, 2019Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)6tbsLPR NO. 19-376November 21, 2019	Lod Stafford Road	1	tbs		October 10, 2019
Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019 Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019	Mack Road	1	tbs	LPR NO. 19-329	October 10, 2019
Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019	Mecca Road Extension	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-338	October 24, 2019
	Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Lemonwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision) 6 tbs LPR NO. 19-376 November 21, 2019	Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
	Lemonwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019

Dialtha Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
R Dawes Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Lucas Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Mary Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Page Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Ola Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Wyeth Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Stanton Hall Avenue (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Rosalie Avenue (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Tezcuco Avenue(Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Cypress Point Lane	6	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 27, 2020
Hunstock Avenue ***Amended on May 14, 2020 changing from Drive to Avenue	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-097 LPR NO. 20-111	March 12, 2020 May 14, 2020
Linder Road	3	tbs	LPR NO. 20-114	May 14, 2020
Landon Drive (Driftwood Estates)	7	tbs	LPR NO. 20-171	June 11, 2020
Jaden Drive (Driftwood Estates)	7	tbs	LPR NO. 20-171	June 11, 2020
Charles King Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 20-197	June 25, 2020
Good Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 20-216	July 9, 2020
Palmer Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 20-236	July 23, 2020
Oliver Wheat Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 20-236	July 23, 2020
Maci Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 20-365	November 12, 2020
Dixon Jones Boulevard	3	tbs	LPR NO. 21-013	January 14, 2021
Baptiste Drive	1	tbs	LPR NO. 21-037	January 28, 2021
Nicholas Drive	1	tbs	LPR NO. 21-037	January 28, 2021
Ben Jones Road	6	tbs	LPR NO. 21-067	February 25, 2021
Clay Street	9	tbs	LPR NO. 21-091	March 11, 2021
Livingston Street	9	tbs	LPR NO. 21-091	March 11, 2021
Second Street	9	tbs	LPR NO. 21-091	March 11, 2021
Joe Lena	9	tbs	LPR NO. 21-091	March 11, 2021
Oak Street	9	tbs	LPR NO. 21-091	March 11, 2021
Mulberry Street	9	tbs	LPR NO. 21-091	March 11, 2021
Linwood Street	4	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Railroad Avenue	4	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Third Street	4	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Juban Parc Avenue	6	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Rossow Court	6	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Ashwood Court	6	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Russell Way	7	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Williamsburg Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Cambridge Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Hollydale Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Concord Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021

Ridgeway Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Brookcrest Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Autumn Run Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
JW Lane	8	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Barnett Lane	3	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Shooting Range Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	May 27, 2021
Training Center Boulevard Amended on June 10, 2021 LPR NO. 21-196: Correction of road name	7	tbs	LPR NO. 21-171	June 10, 2021
Boat Landing Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 21-194	June 10, 2021
Chene Blanc Lane	8	tbs	LPR NO. 21-194	June 10, 2021
Commercial Drive	5	tbs	LPR NO. 21-233	July 8, 2021
St. Andrews	5	tbs	LPR NO. 21-254	August 12, 2021
Eastover Boulevard	5	tbs	LPR NO. 21-254	August 12, 2021
M. Guitreau	8	tbs	LPR NO. 21-254	August 12, 2021
Sparrow Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 21-254	August 12, 2021
Noblisse Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 21-254	August 12, 2021
Richardson Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 21-254	August 12, 2021
Perkins Crossing Road	1	tbs	LPR NO. 21-254	August 12, 2021
Aztec Drive	5	tbs	LPR NO. 21-254	August 12, 2021
Dick Hodges Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 21-322	October 28, 2021
Olah Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 21-322	October 28, 2021
Fern Road	4	tbs	LPR NO. 21-322	October 28, 2021
Railroad Street	4	tbs	LPR NO. 21-322	October 28, 2021

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT,

MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 18, "Update on Zoning" and called upon Councilman Shane Mack.

Councilman Mack invited Mr. Eddie Aydell of Alvin Fairburn and Associates to report on the progress of the implementation of zoning in the Parish.

Mr. Aydell reported that they had met with Mr. Jeff Taylor, Assessor, and the group that manages his GIS system for the parish. They worked with them to make templates to incorporate the finished product into that GIS system. Mr. Aydell also advised that they were reviewing the zoning structure of the municipalities in the Parish to keep it as close to theirs and mimic, so that there wouldn't be conflicting uses next to the boundary lines of municipalities. He explained the process of identifying rural, industrial and commercial corridors in the Parish and the scope of the work ahead

The chair asked for a timeline. Mr. Aydell stated that he would have something for the Council to review in November.

Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse requested that an overlay of the Council districts be created.

The chair asked what the timeline would be for the public to have input and appeal how their property was zoned. Mr. Aydell shared that he had a couple of methods that he wished for the Council to review.

Councilman Mack questioned if the definition ordinance regarding classified and unclassified properties could be addressed in the draft that was coming in November. Mr. Aydell advised that they had recommendations to amend the definition ordinance.

Having no further comment, the chair moved to the next agenda item.

The chair addressed agenda item number 19a through d, "Board (re)appointments/Resignation(s)" and called upon Councilman Shane Mack.

LPR NO. 21-323

MOTION was made by Shane Mack and duly seconded by Gerald McMorris to appoint Mr. Don Bernard (resident of Council District 9) on the Board of Commissioners of Fire Protection District No. 11, filling the previous board position of Raymond Addison (resident of Council District 9); term of appointment being two (2) years expiring on November 10, 2023.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT,

MR. HARRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 21-324

MOTION was made by R.C. "Bubba" Harris and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to reappoint Carl Juneau (resident of Council District 5) to the Board of Commissioners of Gravity Drainage District No. 1; the term of this four (4) year appointment will expire on November 22, 2025.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT,

MR. HARRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 21-325

MOTION was made by John Wascom and duly seconded by Randy Delatte to reappoint Chris Whitmire (resident of Council District 4) to the Board of Commissioners of Gravity Drainage District No. 1; the term of this four (4) reappointment will expire on November 22, 2025.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT,

MR. HARRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 21-326

MOTION was made by Jeff Ard and duly seconded by Randy Delatte to reappoint Murray Morgan (resident of Council District 1) to the Board of Commissioners of Gravity Drainage District No. 2; the term of this four (4) appointment will expire on November 8, 2021.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT,

MR. HARRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 19d, "Board (re)appointment(s)/Resignation(s): Master Plan Review Committee" and called upon Councilman Shane Mack.

Councilman Mack reported on the Master Plan Review committee that he attended.

LPR NO. 21-327

MOTION was made by Shane Mack and duly seconded by John Wascom to appoint Ross Kinchen (resident of Council District 9) in the vacated position of Eileen McCarroll to the Master Plan Review Committee and shall serve at the pleasure of the Livingston Parish Council, whereas there is no term of expiration for this appointment.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT,

MR. HARRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. DELATTE

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 20a, "Committee Reports: Master Plan Review Committee". The chair stated that Councilman Mack had addressed this matter in the previous agenda item and moved to the next agenda item.

The chair called upon Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse to address agenda item number 20b, "Committee Reports: Ordinance Committee".

Councilman Girlinghouse reported that the committee had met and went over a few things. The committee deferred the impact fee ordinance as they wished Councilman Mack to approach this, and it would be on the committee's next agenda. They received an update from Administration as to what they wished to be put in the proposed Load Limit ordinance and Councilman Girlinghouse requested to have more information. The committee also discussed the ordinance on parking on parish roads, coming to an impasse, and wished to defer it until a later date. The final ordinance that came up for discussion was the proposed amendment to the grass cutting ordinance and recommendation to introduce the ordinance and also an amendment to abandoned vehicles ordinance that will define the process of who to contact. The chair explained in great detail that these two (2) ordinances were brought before the Ordinance committee by the Compliance Department in Administration and why they needed amendments to the current ordinances.

The chair directed the Council clerk to read by title for introduction the following ordinance and set the public hearing. Notice of the public hearing and introduction of the ordinance with the title shall be published in the Official Parish Journal as mandated by the Home Rule Charter. The public hearing will be held on Thursday, November 18, 2021 at six o'clock (6:00) p.m. located in the Council chambers of the Governmental Building located at 20300 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana.

L.P. ORDINANCE 21-28

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 74, "VEGETATION," SECTION 74-87, "REMOVAL REQUIRED WHEN CONSTITUTING A NUISANCE AND/OR

HEALTH HAZARD", OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES IN AND FOR THE PARISH OF LIVINGSTON.

The chair directed the Council clerk to read by title for introduction the following ordinance and set the public hearing. Notice of the public hearing and introduction of the ordinance with the title shall be published in the Official Parish Journal as mandated by the Home Rule Charter. The public hearing will be held on Thursday, November 18, 2021 at six o'clock (6:00) p.m. located in the Council chambers of the Governmental Building located at 20300 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana.

L.P. ORDINANCE 21-29

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 22, "ENVIRONMENT," SECTION 22-52, "DEFINITIONS" BY AMENDING "ABANDONED MOTOR VEHICLE", OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES IN AND FOR THE PARISH OF LIVINGSTON.

Having no other comment to report, the chair moved to the next agenda item.

The chair called upon Councilman Jeff Ard to present a report of agenda item number 20c, "Finance Committee". Councilman Ard reported that the Finance committee had met, and Jennifer Meyers, Finance Director, had submitted the proposed budget that will be introduced on November 18th and will come up again on December 2nd for the Council's approval. Ms. Meyers advised that the budget will be starting out with twelve million in the road overlay program, and could potentially increase, as all of the bonds on the road program have been paid off. Councilman Ard stated that the Parish's tax income was still doing well, which probably comes from the great amount of people repairing their homes from the storm damage. He also advised that the Finance Director had sent everyone a check register for their review and all in all everything looked well for the Parish.

Councilman Randy Delatte questioned how changes to the budget could be made after the ordinance introduction on November 18th and when it comes up for adoption on December 2nd.

The chair stated that the ordinance will be introduced on November 18th and it must be adopted no later than December 2nd. He further stated that any amendments that would need to be made on December 2nd and voted upon December 2nd. The chair reiterated this was a mandate of the Home Rule Charter.

The chair asked if anyone had any other comment for the Finance committee report. Having none, he moved to the next agenda item.

The chair addressed agenda item 21, "District Attorney's Report:", and advised that because the meeting date was moved, there had been a conflict, and the Parish attorney could not attend.

The chair addressed agenda item number 22, "Councilmen's comments:" and asked if any of the Council members wished to speak.

Councilman R.C. "Bubba" Harris wished to discuss the upcoming Trunk-or-Treat event that would be held on Saturday, October 30, 2021 at South Park in Denham Springs.

Councilman Jeff Ard stated that the state mask mandate had been lifted and questioned if the Council members could discuss possibly going back to meeting again together in the Council chambers.

The chair advised that he was going to make the announcement since the Governor of Louisiana had lifted the mask mandate. He advised that the Council members would be allowed to go ahead and meet in person for the November 4th regular meeting of the Council, as well as, the November 18th, December 2nd and December 16th regular meetings. He stated that there was no longer any justification to meet via Zoom and advised Councilman Ard that he as the chairman would definitely want the meetings to go back to public meetings in person. Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse concurred.

Councilman Randy Delatte wished to comment. He addressed the Councilmembers and stated that he wanted them to know that what he was about to say was with all sincerity in his heart. He acknowledged that the Council had a very good meeting that evening. He continued and stated that there were many leaders on the Council who all had a great amount of compassion for the people of Livingston Parish. He said that it started with the chairman, showing his leadership

ability, and called the names of the other Councilmembers and stated that they were all good leaders. Councilman Delatte further stated that every one of them took notice to actively listen to individuals in their communities that have that Councilman's ear. He asserted that each Council member comes to the floor to talk and debate for these people that they represent as hard as they can fight, but still be friends with each other that sit on the Council. He expressed the reason being, everyone is not going to agree or have the same point, but everyone does have one thing in common, and that is strong leadership abilities, along with strong compassion for the citizens of Livingston Parish. Councilman Delatte acknowledged that he had been in Parish government, this being his third term, and confessed that this Council was the best that he had ever served on. He continued, and stated that in the past, there had always been one or two people, and professed that all of the nine (9) members of this Parish Council serve strive to do the right things to represent the constituency of this Parish. The Council members thanked Councilman Delatte and agreed with his remarks.

Having no further business, a motion to adjourn was requested until the next regular meeting being scheduled on Thursday, November 4, 2021, at the hour of six o'clock (6:00) p.m. in Livingston, Louisiana.

LPR NO. 21-328

MOTION was offered by Jeff Ard and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to adjourn the October 28, 2021 regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. MCMORRIS, MR. HARRIS, MR. DELATTE, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE,

MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM, MR. ARD, MR. TALBERT

NAYS:

ABSENT: MR. KEEN

ABSTAIN: **NONE**

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted and that the meeting was adjourned.

s Sandy C. Teal Sandy C. Teal, Council Clerk

\s\ Garry Tallert
Garry Talbert, Council Chairman